
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Community 
Services 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: Wednesday, 11th January, 2006 

Time: 6.00 p.m. 

Place: 
Green Dragon Hotel, Broad Street, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note that following receipt of 
evidence this meeting will adjourn and 
reconvene at: 

2.00 p.m. Friday, 13th January, 2006 

Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod 
Road, Hereford. 

For any further information please contact: 

Craig Goodall, Members' Services, 
Tel/Fax:01432 260445 

email - cgoodall@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 





COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 11TH JANUARY, 2006 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
To:       Councillor 

Councillor 
 

 
A.C.R. Chappell (Chairman) 
H. Bramer (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillors M.R. Cunningham, Mrs. S.P.A. Daniels, J.G.S. Guthrie, 
B. Hunt, D.C. Taylor, P.G. Turpin and A.L. Williams 

  
Co-opted Members Ms. C. Jones (Chamber of Commerce), G. Jones (Tourism 

Sector), Mrs. E. Newman (Herefordshire Association of 
Local Councils) and Mr. P. Thomas (Herefordshire NFU) 

  

  

  

 Pages 

  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES     
   
 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in 

place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 8  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 

2005. 
 

   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
6. REVIEW OF THE EXPERIMENT TO PEDESTRIANISE WIDEMARSH 

STREET, HEREFORD   
9 - 12  

   
 To review the experiment to partially close Widemarsh Street, Hereford to 

traffic from May 2005 to January 2006. 
 

   





PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises 
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 

•  Help in developing Council policy 
 

• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 
before and after decisions are taken 

 

• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 

 

• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 

• Review performance of the Council 
 

• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 

• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 

 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• The Green Dragon Hotel is located in Broad Street, Hereford and can be easily 

reached on foot from all of the Counties public transport  

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 

Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 

 

 
 



GREEN DRAGON HOTEL 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to the car park at the rear of the 
building. A check will be undertaken to ensure that those 
recorded as present have vacated the building following which 
further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee held at Assembly Hall, Town Hall, Hereford. on 
Wednesday, 14th December, 2005 at 6.00 p.m. 
  

Present: Councillor 
Councillor 

A.C.R. Chappell (Chairman) 
H. Bramer (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors M.R. Cunningham, J.G.S. Guthrie, D.C. Taylor and 

P.G. Turpin 
 

Co-opted Members G. Jones (Tourism Sector), Mrs. E. Newman (Herefordshire 
Association of Local Councils) and Mr. S. Speight 
(Chamber of Commerce) 

  

  
In attendance: Councillors Mrs. M.D. Lloyd-Hayes and D.B. Wilcox (Cabinet Member – 

Highways and Transportation). 
  
  
22. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 Apologies were received from Councillors J.M. Mayson (Cabinet Member – Rural 

Regeneration and Strategy) and R.V. Stockton (Cabinet Member –Community 
Services). 

  
23. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
  
 Mr. S. Speight substituted for Ms. C. Jones. 

 
  
24. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 There were no declarations of interest. 
  
25. MINUTES   
  
 RESOLVED: That, subject to the deletion of the repeated apologies for 

absence, Minute Item 10, from the published minutes, the 
minutes of the meeting held on 5th October 2005 be approved as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
  
26. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 

SCRUTINY   
  
 There were no suggestions of issues for future scrutiny received from the members 

of the public present at the meeting. 
 

  
27. OVERVIEW OF HERITAGE AND MUSEUM SERVICES   
  
 The Committee was provided with an overview of the Herefordshire Council’s 

Heritage Service, the service that delivers the Council’s museum provision. 
  

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 14TH DECEMBER, 
2005 

 
The Principal Heritage Officer gave a presentation to the Committee.  The 
following are the principal points of the presentation and following questions: 
 

• Seven sites were open to the public throughout the County including the 
Museum on the Move mobile museum which visits schools and community 
groups and events. 

• A virtual tour was available of the Old House, Hereford for those visitors which 
were unable to use the stairs. 

• The Service has over 100,000 items in its collections which when not on 
display to the public need to be preserved for the future. 

• The costume and textiles collection was internationally recognised. 

• Items from the art collection were regularly loaned to other museums for 
display. 

• The Museum on the Move mobile museum visits schools throughout the 
County as there are currently no fully accessible education facilities  to host 
visits. 

• The Museum on the Move bus is funded via a partnership with Shropshire and 
Worcestershire County Councils.  All three Counties share one bus. 

• A Community Heritage Officer aids local community groups with research 
activities and facilitates displays in the County’s museums by local history 
groups. 

• Officer time and support was provided to the 21 independent and small 
museums in the County. 

• In 2006 Herefordshire Council’s Museums were due to apply for accreditation, 
the new round of the national scheme for museum standards. 

• Any finds which are dated as pre 1680 are logged on a national database. 

• The project to establish a new Museum and Resource Centre was making 
good progress, currently 3 stores, staff offices and a research room for visitors 
were open.  Plans were now progressing on extending the building so that all 
collections could be stored on one site.  A Stage 1 pass of funding of £1.2m 
from the Heritage Lottery Fund and match funding from Herefordshire Council 
had been secured for this purpose and the decision on the stage 2 pass is 
imminent.  The final stage of this project was for Hereford Museum and Library, 
Broad Street, Hereford to be redesigned to sole Museum use with the Library 
to relocate onto the Edgar Street Grid. 

• The extension of the Museum and Resource Centre was scheduled to be 
complete by September 2007 and was not linked to progress in relocating the 
current library. 

• The creation of the new Museum and Resource Centre had allowed: 
collections in commercial storage to be returned; collections to be moved from 
the Old House basement; the establishment and implementation of an 
integrated pest management system to protect collections and the Museum on 
the Move to be able to park on site. 

• 100% of all primary schools and 94% of all state schools in Herefordshire had 
used the Museum Service in 2005. 

• Heritage Services had 781 users per 1000 of population – this figure did 
include a high number of out of county visitors. 

• Heritage Services had 35 members of staff and 80 volunteers.  
 

  
28. TOURISM DEVELOPMENT IN HEREFORDSHIRE   
  
 The Committee was updated on the establishment of a Destination Management 

Partnership (DMP) for Herefordshire and informed how this partnership will 
encourage a framework for investment in the sector as well as the Herefordshire 

2



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 14TH DECEMBER, 
2005 

 
economy.  Members were also updated on the Three Choirs Festival in 
Herefordshire which was set to take place during 2006. 
 
The Principal Tourism Officer informed the Committee that the West Midland Visitor 
Economy Strategy) launched in April 2004 recommended that DMP’s should be 
established within its sub-regions to implement and deliver the Regional Strategy 
and bring together all the elements that make up the ‘tourism experience’ in each 
sub-region into one body – the DMP. 
 
She explained that the Tourism Co-ordination Group, set up as a result of the Best 
Value review of Tourism, made up of representatives of all sectors in the tourism 
industry, representatives of the regions of Herefordshire and other statutory bodies 
had taken the lead in establishing the DMP in Herefordshire which consultation 
results showed was widely supported.  Industry representatives felt that the 
establishment of the DMP will cut down on duplication and enable the DMP to attract 
external funding to help deliver tourism in the County. 
 
The DMP is scheduled to be in place by April 2006 subject to the approval of the 
Councils Cabinet and the Tourism Co-ordination Groups Shadow Board. 
 
A Member of the Committee stated that the establishment of a DMP was an 
important step in the development of tourism in Herefordshire.  He informed 
Members that the DMP had wide support, contained strong representatives from the 
private sector and presented a common sense approach to dealing with tourism 
issues within the County. 
 
The Principal Tourism Officer informed the Committee that work was already 
beginning in promoting next years Three Choirs Festival.  A postcard will be mailed 
in January to 80,000 homes in the UK, to people from a database of addresses that 
are currently held by Herefordshire Tourism developed from persons who had 
previously expressed an interest in receiving information about the area, containing 
the logo of the Three Choirs Festival including website address and a box whereby 
the recipient can indicate that they would like to receive a programme for the Festival 
by returning the postcard.  The Festival was also promoted in Herefordshire’s annual 
visitor guide and on the Council’s website. 
 
The Chairman expressed concern that many cafes and restaurants in Hereford were 
closed on Sundays and not open late at night.  He felt that it would be beneficial for 
these types of facilities to be open later generally but especially during the Three 
Choirs Festival when Herefordshire would attract large numbers of visitors.  
 
Members heard that the Principal Tourism Officer was keen to work with facilities 
which could provide pre and post performance entertainment during the Festival.  An 
idea was being investigated whereby members of the public could buy a ticket for a 
performance at the Festival and a reservation would be made for a meal at a local 
restaurant at a set time either before or after an event. 
 
A representative of the Cathedral, a key venue for hosting performances during the 
Festival, informed Members that the Festival provided the City with an economic 
opportunity as research had shown that approximately 60% of visitors to the Festival 
would stay overnight within the location of the Festival.  Therefore it would be 
beneficial for Herefordshire economically and socially, and the Festival as a whole, if 
facilities were provided for Festival goers at times which coincided with 
performances.  He reported that a meeting was scheduled with Council 
representatives to discuss now the proposed City Centre refurbishment could be 
timed to have minimum impact on the Festival.  

3



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 14TH DECEMBER, 
2005 

 
 
Comment was made that it was important that litter was cleared from the streets in 
order to attract tourists to the County. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That (a) the report be noted and the actions already taken to promote the Three 

Choirs Festival be supported; 
 

(b) the Committee suggests that the Cabinet Member (Environment) 
considers ensuring that appropriate Council facilities, including car 
parks and public conveniences, are available to visitors at appropriate 
times during the Three Choirs Festival; 

  
 and; 

 
(c) the Committee suggests that the Cabinet Member responsible for 

Economic Development considers encouraging local businesses to 
vary or extend their trading hours to cater for visitors during the Three 
Choirs Festival. 

 
  
29. HEREFORD CITY CENTRE REFURBISHMENT   
  
 The Committee considered the consultation process that was undertaken in respect 

of the proposed refurbishments to Hereford City Centre. 
 
The Economic Regeneration Officer informed Members that the designs and 
costings for the city centre refurbishment had been developed between Council 
Officers with Owen Williams and RRA Architects.  The initial designs were 
formulated using information gained during previous work which had indicated that 
people were keen to see more space in the city centre so that more events and 
displays could take place. 
 
He explained that the design work for the refurbishment was very detailed so a 
decision was taken to only consult on the general layout and paving design before 
completing a further consultation on the other multiple options which included lighting 
and planting. 
 
In October 2005 a full public consultation commenced which included a preview of 
the consultation for County and City Council Members, Hereford City Partnership, 
Hereford in Bloom and the Civic Society on 21 October 2005.  Retailers in the City 
were advised of the public consultation in a letter using addresses from the business 
rates database. 
 
A public consultation exercise was  undertaken from 22 to 29 October 2005 from a 
trailer in High Town and in the Old House.  Available to the public were static display 
boards and Officers to explain the details on display.  260 consultation forms were 
returned, however, this does not reflect the number of people attending the 
consultation, many couples returned a single form and many others did not wish to 
complete a form.  It is estimated that during the course of the consultation between 
700-1000 people viewed the display. 
 
The Committee was informed that from the returned consultation forms 
approximately 60% favoured option 2, 20% option 1 and 20% were against both.  
Details of the options were attached at Appendix 1 to the report.  A copy of the report 

4



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 14TH DECEMBER, 
2005 

 
detailing the options was forwarded to Members prior to the meeting. 
 
The following are the principal points from the ensuing discussion: 
 

• The consultation was not available online.  However, the second stage of the 
consultation process would be available on the Councils Website. 

• After hearing that some business consultation forms were returned un-delivered 
and the fact that many businesses had their rates paid by regional centres the 
Committee felt that any correspondence relating to the next stage of the 
consultation process should be hand delivered. 

• Businesses within the Hereford City ring road were consulted. 

• Meetings were taking place with utility service providers to ensure that any 
essential works which needed to take place could be timed with any 
refurbishment to help prevent future disruption. 

• The telephone boxes currently sited in High Town were under discussion with 
BT. 

• An agreement had been made with the Three Choirs Festival that no work would 
take place in the main area of the City during the Festival. 

 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted.  
 

  
30. ADULT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTORATE   
  
 Members were advised of the current structure and delivery arrangements for the 

Adult and Community Services Directorate. 
 
The Director of Adult and Community Services informed the Committee that his new 
Directorate comprised of elements of the former Policy and Community Directorate 
and Social Care and Strategic Housing Directorate.  The Directorate was formed as 
a result of a senior management restructure in early 2005. 
 
He explained that the Directorate was currently still being established and it was 
anticipated that a new management structure would be confirmed in early 2006.  
Currently services were being managed through the existing management structure 
which was outlined in Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

  
31. PERFORMANCE MONITORING   
  
 The Committee were informed on the available performance indicators position and 

provided with information about current performance management work within the 
Community Services Division of the Adult and Community Services Directorate. 
 
The Performance Improvement Manager explained the amended report style and 
briefly took Members through the data which was attached at Appendix 1 to the 
report.  He highlighted underperformance in the Community Youth Service (CYS) but 
explained that he expected performance to improve with the implementation of new 
positive partnership working arrangements. 
 
The following are the principal points from the ensuing discussion: 
 

• Concern was expressed regarding the lack of resources within the Parks 

5



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 14TH DECEMBER, 
2005 

 
Contract Budget.   It was suggested that plastic vandal proof benches be used to 
replaced aged timber ones.  Although these benches were known to be more 
expensive than their timber counterparts the Committee considered their 
durability to be worth the extra initial capital outlay. 

• Concern was expressed regarding the performance of the CYS.  A view was 
stated that the voluntary sector could be made to feel more apart of the CYS 
culture.  The Committee decided that they would like to receive a report from the 
CYS Manager on this issue. 

• The Committee were keen to establish if there was any increase in alcohol 
related crime and disorder with the recent introduction of the Licensing Act. 

• It was clarified that HAND stood for Herefordshire Against Night-time Disorder. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That (a) the report be noted; 
 

and; 
 

(b) the Community Youth Service Manager report to the next meeting of 
the Committee regarding the relationship between the CYS and the 
voluntary sector. 

 
  
32. ST. KATHERINES SITE - UPDATE   
  
 Members were updated about the current position regarding progress in developing  

The Masters House, St Katherine’s, Ledbury into an integrated library and Info Shop. 
 
The Interim Head of Community Services informed the Committee that an 
independent Conservation Report had revealed that some parts of the Masters 
House building dated back to the early 15th Century and therefore recommended 
that only certain areas of the site should be subject to alteration.  It was believed that 
it would be possible to work with English Heritage to gain listed building consent to 
go ahead with the alterations prior to the relocation. 
 
Additionally special provision needed to be made to the St Katherine’s development 
to incorporate provision for ICT development and the expansion of the current 
network upgrade project. 
 
Members heard that all of these issues had delayed the commencement of the 
project to summer 2006. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted.  
 

  
33. WORK PROGRAMME 2006/07   
  
 The Committee considered a new work programme for 2006/07. 

 
The Chairman informed the Committee of the draft work programme formulated after 
consultation with the Director of Adult and Community Services and attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report.  He stated that much of the work programme had been 
kept clear so that the Committee could consider the most current issues for scrutiny 
within its remit at a particular time. 
 
In preparation for the March meeting of the Committee, the Chairman stated that he 

6



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY, 14TH DECEMBER, 
2005 

 
hoped that the Committee would undertake a tour of the new swimming pool in 
Leominster. 
 
The Chairman noted that it had already been agreed to consider an item concerning 
the CYS at the next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: That, subject to the inclusion of the Community Youth Services 

item,  the work programme be approved and recommended to the 
Strategic Monitoring Committee. 

 
  
The meeting ended at 7.26 p.m. CHAIRMAN 
 

7



8



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 11TH JANUARY 2006
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Stephen Oates, Head of Highways and Transportation on (01432) 260780  

 

 
WidemarshReportFinalAgenda0301060.doc  

 REVIEW OF THE EXPERIMENT TO PEDESTRIANISE 
WIDEMARSH STREET, HEREFORD 

Report By: Head of Highways and Transportation 

 

Wards Affected 

 Central 

Purpose 

1. To review the experiment to partially close Widemarsh Street, Hereford to traffic from 
8th June 2005 to 31st December 2005. 

Financial Implications 

2. A budget of £45,000 for 2005/6 was allocated to undertake this trial.  The financial 
implications of the arrangements to be put in place following this trial will be 
dependent upon the decision regarding the future traffic arrangements for the area.  
  

Background 

4. The experiment to pedestrianise Widemarsh Street, Hereford was proposed after 
public consultation showed support for pedestrianisation after Widemarsh Street and 
High Street had been closed to traffic to enable Transco to undertake essential 
maintenance works to gas mains from July to October 2004. 

5. Surveys conducted during these works demonstrated strong public support for 
improved pedestrian conditions.  Of those surveyed, 72% of pedestrians and 59% of 
retailers surveyed favoured some form of pedestrianisation for Widemarsh Street. 

6. A consultation exercise was undertaken seeking the views of members of the public 
and retailers on the prospects of a permanent pedestrianisation scheme being 
implemented in Widemarsh Street.  A presentation was given by the Head of 
Highways and Transportation at the Hereford City Local Area Forum on 19 January 
2005 about the possibility of an experiment to pedestrianise Widemarsh Street.  
Members of the public present were able to comment on the proposals presented to 
them and encouraged to take part in the consultation that was taking place at the 
time.  Additionally, details of the proposed available schemes were also displayed in 
All Saints Church, Hereford where members of the public were again given the 
opportunity to comment on the proposals put before them by taking part in the 
consultation process which ended on 18 February 2005. 

7. On 26th January 2005 the Widemarsh Street Review Group established by the 
Social and Economic Development Scrutiny Committee met key stakeholders 
including the police, retailers, transport operators and others in the Green Dragon 
Hotel, Hereford to discuss the proposed experiment to pedestrianise Widemarsh 
Street from May-December 2005.  The meeting attracted approximately 50 members 
of the public who also expressed their views.  

AGENDA ITEM 6

9



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 11TH JANUARY 2006
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Stephen Oates, Head of Highways and Transportation on (01432) 260780  

 

 
WidemarshReportFinalAgenda0301060.doc  

8. At the conclusion of the consultation in February 2005, 293 completed questionnaires 
had been returned from the police, retailers and other interested groups of just under 
1500 distributed, which equalled a 20% response rate.  Of the responses, 81% were 
in favour of a trial pedestrianisation and 65% were in favour of a trial to continue 
through to December 2005.  On the specific options available for pedestrianisation, 
45% of responses were in favour of a 10.30 am – 4.30 pm closure and 38% were in 
favour of full 24 hour daily closure (with exemptions for service access outside core 
shopping hours). 

9. The decision to experiment with a partial closure of Widemarsh Street, Hereford was 
taken by Cabinet at its meeting on 28th April 2005.   It was resolved that Widemarsh 
Street be closed to traffic from 10.30 am – 4.30 pm seven days a week for a 
minimum period until at least 31st December 2005.  

10. The pedestrianisation experiment was concluded on 31st December 2005.  However, 
due to a need for works to take place in High Street for several weeks starting on 9th 
January 2006 the road closure order has remained in place. 

11. To enable the experiment to be evaluated statistics on: Car Parking, Tourism, Air 
Quality, Shopmobility Usage, Footfall and Traffic Flows have been collated. 

12. In addition to this the views of Stakeholders, including the Emergency Services, 
Transport Operators and User Groups have been sought.  The Public and City 
Centre Retailers have also been surveyed, this process has included a two-page 
consultation document which had been sent to every household in Herefordshire in 
the November 2005 Edition of ‘Herefordshire Matters’.  Additionally all comments 
received on the experiment have been collated as part of the monitoring process. 

13. In summary:  

• The closure of Widemarsh Street has had no specific impact on car parking in 
Hereford City.  

• The air quality in Widemarsh Street shows a marked improvement.  The air 
quality for the Edgar Street roundabout shows little change during the closure.  

• Shopmobility usage has shown a general reduction – although there has 
been an increase in November compared with October.  It is thought that 
there have been a number of people purchasing their own vehicles, which 
has resulted in the reduction.  

• Footfall has shown an overall increase compared with 2004, so it would 
appear that numbers coming into town have not been adversely affected by 
the closure.  

• Traffic counts have been undertaken at Greyfriars Bridge, Broad Street, 
Widemarsh Gate and Bridge Street junction with Berrington Street.  The 
amount of traffic using these streets is broadly similar on each occasion. 

• 38% of Retailers (750 surveys were sent out, and 227 replied) said revert to 
previous situation and 55% said make the closure permanent.  

• 2,413 responses have been received from the general public.  71% of 
respondents felt that the pedestrianisation made the overall experience of 

10



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 11TH JANUARY 2006
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Stephen Oates, Head of Highways and Transportation on (01432) 260780  

 

 
WidemarshReportFinalAgenda0301060.doc  

visiting Hereford better, compared to 18% who found it worse.  7% found 
there to be no difference. 

Objectives of this meeting 

14. The Community Services Scrutiny Committee will be hearing representations in 
respect of the community and economic impact of the trial scheme from the following 
key stakeholders: 

• National Traders 

• Local Traders 

• Taxi Association 

• Police 

• Disabled Groups 

• Hereford Cathedral 

Next Steps 

15. In view of the large amount of evidence likely to be presented to the Committee on 
the evening once all the invited witnesses have been interviewed the meeting will 
adjourn.  The meeting will then reconvene at 2.00pm on Friday 13th January 2006 in 
the Council Chamber at Brockington, Hereford where it will review the evidence and 
consider whether it wishes to make any recommendations to Cabinet. 

16. The meeting on Friday, 13th January 2006 will also be open to members of the public 
and press. 

17. Cabinet is currently scheduled to consider the future of the pedestrianisation of 
Widemarsh Street on 26 January 2005. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• Widemarsh Street, Hereford Proposed Experimental Pedestrianisation Scheme (report to 
Cabinet 28th April 2005) 

11



12


